
 
ACADEMIC SENATE MEETING 

AGENDA 
June 4, 2015 

3:00 p.m. – 4:30 p.m. 
L-201 

 
To conform to the open meeting act, the public may attend open sessions 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
2. OPENING COMMENTS FROM THE SENATE PRESIDENT 

 
3. OPEN COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

a. May 21, 2015 Academic Senate Meeting (attachment) 
 

5. REPORTS (5 minutes maximum) 
a. Legislative Report – Dr. Glenn Haller 

 
6. REPORTS ON ACTION ITEMS AND IMPLEMENTATION 

a. Equivalencies (attachments) 
1. Sociology 
2. CTE/Health Care Ancillaries 
3. CTE/Nutritional Science/Dietetics 

 
7. ACTION ITEMS 

a. Appointments 
Tenure Review Committees (11) 

1) Dr. Alexandra Schroer (Math&Science/Physical Science) 
2) Scott Memmer (LA/English) 
3) Lisa Karlstein (VAPA/Photography) 
4) Dr. Ron Chapman (SBS/Sociology) 
5) Dexter Cummins (CTE/Administration of Justice) 
6) Dr. Bassam Salameh (MS/Biology) 
7) Ann Volk (CTE/Nutrition & Foods) 
8) Dr. Paul Ahad (MS) 
9) Dr. Mark McGovern (MS) 

 
b. Academic Ranking 

• Deborah Dickinson – Professor 
• Sandra Hughes – Professor 
• Sandra D. Robinson – Professor 

c. Appointments 
• Senate Executive Vice President (attachment) 

d. Article V Ratification (attachment) 
 
 
  



8. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
a. AP 3570 Tobacco Use on Campus Updated (attachment) 
b. AP 5520 Student Discipline Updated (attachment) 
c. AP 5530 Student Rights & Grievances Updated (attachment) 
d. Presentation – Historical Changes of BP 4020/BP 4025 – Ed Knudson 

 
9. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

a. Unit Organizational Review: Facilities & AVC Foundation Office  
 

10. SENATE ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS 
a. AP&P Committee Course/Program Recommendations for Academic Senate Approval 

 
11. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

June 11 – 13, 2015 Faculty Leadership Institute San Jose Marriott 
July 9 - 11, 2015 2015 Curriculum Institute Double Tree, Orange  
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 

2014-15 ACADEMIC SENATE MEETINGS & COMMITTEE REPORTS 
February 19, 2015 
Honors Program Committee 
Accreditation Committee 
AP&P Committee     

April 16, 2015 
Tenure Review Committee 
Accreditation Committee 

March 5, 2015 
Faculty Professional Development Committee 
Distance Education & Technology Committee 
Tenure Review Committee 

May 7, 2015 
Faculty Professional Development Committee 
Distance Education & Technology Committee 

March 19, 2015 
Outcomes Committee 
Program Review Committee 

May 21, 2015 
Outcomes Committee 
Honors Program Committee 
Program Review Committee 

April 2, 2015 
AP&P Committee 

June 4, 2015 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY 
Antelope Valley College prohibits discrimination and harassment based on sex, gender, race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, age, 
disability, marital status, sexual orientation, cancer-related medical condition, or genetic predisposition.  Upon request, we will consider 
reasonable accommodation to permit individuals with protected disabilities to (1) complete the employment or admission process, (b) perform 
essential job functions, (c) enjoy benefits and privileges of similarly-situated individuals without disabilities, and (d) participate in instruction, 
programs, services, activities, or events.   
 
Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate 
in a meeting should direct such request to Dr. Ed Beyer, Academic Senate President, at (661) 722-6306 (weekdays between the hours of 8:00 
a.m. and 4:30 p.m.) at least 48 hours before the meeting, if possible.  Public records related to agenda items for open session are available for 
public inspection 72 hours prior to each regular meeting at the Antelope Valley College Academic Senate’s Office, Administration Building, 3041 
West Avenue K, Lancaster, California 93536. 



 
ACADEMIC SENATE MEETING 

MINUTES 
June 4, 2015 

3:00 p.m. – 4:30 p.m. 
L-201 

 
To conform to the open meeting act, the public may attend open sessions 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

The Academic Senate meeting of June 4, 2015 was called to order at 3:00 p.m. by Dr. Ed 
Beyer, Academic Senate President. 

 
2. OPENING COMMENTS FROM THE SENATE PRESIDENT 

Dr. Ed Beyer expressed his well wishes to Ms. MaryAnne Holcomb who is retiring. 
 

3. OPEN COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Dr. Ken Shafer suggested agenda packets be distributed in hard copy format. 

 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

a. May 21, 2015 Academic Senate Meeting (attachment) 
A motion was made and seconded to approve minutes of the May 21, 2015 meeting.  
Motion carried with one (1) correction. 

 
5. REPORTS (5 minutes maximum) 

a. Legislative Report – Dr. Glenn Haller 
Dr. Glenn Haller presented a legislative report – see attachment. 
 

6. REPORTS ON ACTION ITEMS AND IMPLEMENTATION 
a. Equivalencies (attachments) 

1. Sociology 
2. CTE/Health Care Ancillaries 
3. CTE/Nutritional Science/Dietetics 

 
7. ACTION ITEMS 

a. Appointments 
Tenure Review Committees (11) 

1) Dr. Alexandra Schroer (Math&Science/Physical Science) 
2) Scott Memmer (LA/English) 
3) Lisa Karlstein (VAPA/Photography) 
4) Dr. Ron Chapman (SBS/Sociology) 
5) Dexter Cummins (CTE/Administration of Justice) 
6) Dr. Bassam Salameh (MS/Biology) 
7) Ann Volk (CTE/Nutrition & Foods) 
8) Dr. Paul Ahad (MS) 
9) Dr. Mark McGovern (MS) 

A motion was made and seconded to ratify the appointments of the aforementioned 
candidates to serve as faculty representatives on the Tenure Review Committees. 
Motion carried. 

Approved: September 3, 2015 Academic Senate Meeting 
 



b. Academic Ranking 
• Deborah Dickinson – Professor 
• Sandra Hughes – Professor 
• Sandra D. Robinson – Professor 

A motion was made and seconded to ratify the aforementioned Academic Ranking requests. 
Motion carried with two (2) abstentions. 
 

c. Election 
• Senate Executive Vice President – Dr. Irit Gat (attachment) 

A motion was made and seconded to elect by acclamation Dr. Irit Gat as the Senate 
Executive Vice President. 
Motion carried. 

d. Article V Ratification (attachment) 
A motion was made and seconded to ratify Article V. 
 
Members discussed Article V and were divided as to whether the new requirements are too 
demanding, and also unfair to those in transition who are working to reach a higher ranking 
under the current requirements. It was suggested to give faculty one-year notification prior 
to changes in the obligations of academic ranking. 
 
Motion failed: 9 yes votes; 11 no votes; 3 abstentions. 

 
8. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

a. AP 3570 Tobacco Use on Campus Updated (attachment) 
Dr. Beyer explained the reviews of APs and BPs will be a standing item for the Senate. The 
Senate Executive will work on behalf of the Academic Senate during summer and if there 
is no feedback regarding AP 3570, AP 5520 and AP 5530, the Senate Executive will move 
them forward. 
 
Dr. Beyer read AP 3570 and asked if senators had questions regarding the suggested 
revisions. 
 

b. AP 5520 Student Discipline Updated (attachment) 
Dr. Beyer read AP 5520 and asked if senators had questions regarding the suggested 
revisions. 
 
It was suggested faculty receive training to understand the process when a student who is 
suspended attends class. The recommendation will be forwarded to the Vice President of 
Student Services. Dr. Beyer reminded senators of the Behavior Intervention & Disciplinary 
Referral Procedures workshops facilitated by Deputy Raymond Murgatroyd and Gary 
Roggenstein held on Welcome Back/Opening Day. He encouraged faculty to submit 
the BIT Disciplinary Report anytime a student’s behavior is questionable. The form can be 
found on the Vice President of Student Services website. 

 
c. AP 5530 Student Rights & Grievances Updated (attachment) 

Dr. Beyer read AP 5530 and asked if senators had questions regarding the suggested 
revisions. 
 
Dr. Beyer asked senators to share the APs and suggested revisions with faculty, and 
forward any feedback to Dr. Beyer or the Senate Executive. The goal is to present the 
reviews for July 2015 board approval. 

Approved: September 3, 2015 Academic Senate Meeting 
 

http://www.avc.edu/administration/vpstudentserv/bitdr.php


d. Presentation – Historical Changes of BP 4020/BP 4025 – Ed Knudson 
President Ed Knudson addressed senators to explain the historical perspective of BP 4020 
and BP 4025 – see attachments.  
 
Dr. Beyer explained the BP 4020 and BP 4025 information will be reviewed during the 
summer and shared with constituents for consideration in the fall. 

 
9. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

a. Unit Organizational Review: Facilities & AVC Foundation Office  
Dr. Beyer read a memorandum explaining unit organization review for both Facilities and 
the AVC Foundation office. 

 
10. SENATE ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS 

a. AP&P Committee Course/Program Recommendations for Academic Senate Approval 
 

11. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
June 11 – 13, 2015 Faculty Leadership Institute San Jose Marriott 
July 9 - 11, 2015 2015 Curriculum Institute Double Tree, Orange  
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
The Academic Senate meeting of June 4, 2015 was adjourned at 4:26 p.m. by Dr. Ed Beyer, 
Academic Senate President. 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT 
Dr. Ed Beyer MaryAnne Holcomb Van Rider 
Dr. Liette Bohler Dietra Jackson Dr. Ken Shafer 
Diane Flores-Kagan Dr. Matthew Jaffe Elizabeth Sundberg 
Rosa Fuller Susan Knapp Lisa Vath 
Dr. Irit Gat Jonet Leighton Larry Veres 
Dezdemona Ginosian Dr. Zia Nisani Lisa Karlstein (proxy) 
Jack Halliday Catherine Overdorf Harish Rao (proxy) 
Dr. Jessica Harper Terry Rezek  

MEMBERS ABSENT 
Karen Lubick Dr. Glenn Haller  

GUESTS/EX-OFFICIO 
Ed Knudson Dr. Susan Lowry Dr. Lee Grishman 

 
2014-15 ACADEMIC SENATE MEETINGS & COMMITTEE REPORTS 

February 19, 2015 
Honors Program Committee 
Accreditation Committee 
AP&P Committee     

April 16, 2015 
Tenure Review Committee 
Accreditation Committee 

March 5, 2015 
Faculty Professional Development Committee 
Distance Education & Technology Committee 
Tenure Review Committee 

May 7, 2015 
Faculty Professional Development Committee 
Distance Education & Technology Committee 

March 19, 2015 
Outcomes Committee 
Program Review Committee 

May 21, 2015 
Outcomes Committee 
Honors Program Committee 
Program Review Committee 

April 2, 2015 
AP&P Committee 

June 4, 2015 
 

Approved: September 3, 2015 Academic Senate Meeting 
 



 
NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY 

Antelope Valley College prohibits discrimination and harassment based on sex, gender, race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, age, 
disability, marital status, sexual orientation, cancer-related medical condition, or genetic predisposition.  Upon request, we will consider 
reasonable accommodation to permit individuals with protected disabilities to (1) complete the employment or admission process, (b) perform 
essential job functions, (c) enjoy benefits and privileges of similarly-situated individuals without disabilities, and (d) participate in instruction, 
programs, services, activities, or events.   
 
Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate 
in a meeting should direct such request to Dr. Ed Beyer, Academic Senate President, at (661) 722-6306 (weekdays between the hours of 8:00 
a.m. and 4:30 p.m.) at least 48 hours before the meeting, if possible.  Public records related to agenda items for open session are available for 
public inspection 72 hours prior to each regular meeting at the Antelope Valley College Academic Senate’s Office, Administration Building, 3041 
West Avenue K, Lancaster, California 93536. 

Approved: September 3, 2015 Academic Senate Meeting 
 

























































TO:  The AVC Academic Senate 
 
FROM:   Dr. Irit Gat 
 
RE: AVC Academic Senate Vice President (VP) Nominee 
 
Please accept this letter as my nomination to be the Academic Senate Vice President 
for the 2015-2016 Academic Year. 
 
As the current Faculty Professional Development (FPD) Chair, I have learned a great 
deal about leadership and the responsibilities that this entails.  I took on the FPD  
Chair without having served as a committee member, which came with a steep 
learning curve.  I took my role seriously, as I do any all of my professional roles at 
AVC, and spent numerous hours preparing to be the leader.  This role has provided 
me with the tools I believe necessary to now take on the Senate Vice Presidential 
role.  And I will do the same if elected as VP - learn as much as possible to represent 
the faculty. 
 
For the past two years I have attended every Senate meeting as the FPD chair, even 
though this was not a requirement and served on the Senate by-laws task force.  I 
believe I work well with others and am open to feedback and new ideas. 
 
Thus, I am qualified to carry out the duties of the Vice President such as: 
 
*Conduct Senate meetings and assume other duties assigned to the Senate President, 
as needed, in the absence of the President. 
 
*Serve as liaison between Academic Senate and student representatives appointed to 
college governance committees.  
 
*Provide advice and counsel to the Senate President on academic and professional 
matters and other Senate concerns. 
 
 
Thank you for the consideration. 
 
 



5/28/15	  5:59	  PM	  

	   1	  

ACADEMIC SENATE BYLAWS 
 

 
Article V – Academic Ranking 
 
B500.0 Academic Ranking 
 

B500.1 Academic Ranking is a celebration of personal and professional 
achievement, life-long learning in both occupational and academic fields, and 
commitment to the AVC community. It appropriately recognizes the community 
college professor with the faculty of other segments of higher education, 
establishes the professor’s position in the academic and general communities, 
enhances professional and academic prestige, and increases the reputation of 
the college.   

 
B500.2 Research, creativity, and scholarship play an important role in faculty, 

program and course development contributing to both individual professional 
fulfillment and teaching excellence.  The Antelope Valley College Academic 
Senate encourages faculty members to engage in scholarly activities that will 
benefit and improve both the individual and the institution.  Therefore, Scholarly 
Work is valued in its role in both professional development and student success. 

 
B500.3 Academic Ranking is a separate and strictly an honorary title bestowed by 

the Academic Senate under its authority under the Constitution §102.2.  It is not 
attached to salary, nor is it a merit plan for salary increases. 

 
B500.4 Academic Ranking at Antelope Valley College shall consist of the 

following: 
 

B500.4.1.1.1 Instructor 
B500.4.1.1.2 Adjunct Instructor 
B500.4.1.1.3 Adjunct Assistant Professor 
B500.4.1.1.4 Assistant Professor 
B500.4.1.1.5 Associate Professor 
B500.4.1.1.6 Professor 
B500.4.1.1.7 Professor Emeritus 

 
B500.5 Scholarly Activity 

 
B500.5.1 Research, creativity, and scholarship play an important role in 

faculty, program and course development contributing to both individual 
professional fulfillment and teaching excellence.  The Antelope Valley 
College Academic Senate values and encourages faculty members to 
engage in scholarly activities that will benefit and improve both the individual 
and the institution. Scholarly activities are research based or creative works 
that are peer reviewed and publicly disseminated both on and off campus.  

 
B500.5.2 Faculty members may participate in a wide range of activities 

which might include applied and theoretical research, imaginative 



5/28/15	  5:59	  PM	  

	   2	  

productions of works of literature, music and fine arts, or the application of 
knowledge to further and improve their respective fields.  Such activities 
lead to discovery and integration of new knowledge, technologies, and 
understanding.  

 
 

B500.5.3 Sample Scholarly Work List   (Research, Teaching, Organization, 
Leadership , Service) 

 
B500.5.3.1 The Academic Senate recognizes the following list of widely 

accepted examples of Scholarly works, but this list is not inclusive in 
considering the application for Academic Ranking.  

•Grants (authorship and administration-project manager, ) 
•Publications (peer-reviewed journals/publications, author/editor 

of selected chapters of books/textbooks, clinical or 
professional series, case presentations, book reviews), 

•Presenting or conducting a seminar at local, regional, or 
national meeting  

•Leadership  on national and state committees (conference 
chairs, state senate, and national organizations) related to 
faculty member’s academic field or higher education.  

•Research Projects (Theory driven, policy and practice, localized 
or regional studies, updating/enriching knowledge) 

•Invitational or juried exhibitions (In fields such as music, 
performing arts, and art, performance and juried/curated 
exhibition may be counted as research activity.) 

•National or state awards recognizing excellence in a discipline 
or area 

•Organizing professional conferences, panels, special sessions, 
or contributing to their organization, for example as session 
chair or co-chair and other scholarly activities at such 
conferences or symposiums. 

•Acting as referee for papers submitted to scholarly journals, 
proceedings and for monographs.  

•Completion of an additional degree (Bachelor’s or Advanced) 
post hire date. 

 
 
B501.0 Process for Submitting an Application for Academic Ranking 
 

B501.1 Faculty members wishing to change their academic ranking status must 
submit the Application for Academic Ranking to the Academic Senate Office.  

 
B501.1.1 The faculty member seeking a change in academic ranking may 

request an application from the AVC Senate Office or download the form 
from the Academic Senate home page under the Documents section. 

 
B501.1.2 Applications shall include detailed evidence clearly matching each 

criterion with the supporting rationale and documentation. 



5/28/15	  5:59	  PM	  

	   3	  

 
B501.1.3 The faculty member shall return the completed application with the 

appropriate accompanying documentation.  
 

B501.2 Submitted applications will be reviewed, verified and approved or denied  
by the Vice President, First and Second Executive Officers. 

 
B501.3 Approved faculty requests shall then be presented to the AVC Senate as 

an information item. 
 

B501.4 Upon approval of the faculty member’s request, the application will be 
signed by the Academic Senate President. 

 
B501.4.1 Notification of the approval shall be sent to the College 

President/Superintendent for the school’s acknowledgement.  
 

B501.4.2 The faculty member shall be notified by letter. 
 

B501.5 Upon denial of any faculty member’s application for a change in academic 
ranking, the applicant will be notified by letter. 

 
B501.5.1 The letter shall include a brief explanation for the denial of the 

request. 
 

B501.5.2 The letter will also contain information regarding the process to 
appeal the decision as delineated in §B503.0 and to resubmit a new 
application 

 
B502.0 Academic Ranking Criteria 
 

B502.1 Criteria for Full Time Faculty 
 

B502.1.1 Instructor 
 

B502.1.1.1 All non-tenured faculty members shall be ranked as instructor. 
 
B502.1.2 Assistant Professor 

 
B502.1.2.1 Any full time faculty member at Antelope Valley College who has 

gained tenure shall be granted the rank of Assistant Professor.  
 

B502.1.3 Associate Professor 
 

B502.1.3.1 Any tenured faculty member who has held the rank of Assistant 
Professor at Antelope Valley College for two years and has completed 
one of the following criteria after that faculty member’s official hire 
date, may apply for the rank of Associate Professor.  

 



5/28/15	  5:59	  PM	  

	   4	  

B502.1.3.1.1 Nine semester units of additional upper division or 
graduate units from an accredited institution. 

 
B502.1.3.1.2 Twenty-seven hours of additional training (excluding 

continuing education units), additional certification in occupational 
experience or industry recognized certifications. 

 
B502.1.3.1.3 Two professional achievements as defined in §B500.5. 

 
B502.1.4 Professor 

 
B502.1.4.1 Any faculty member who has held the rank of Associate Professor 

at Antelope Valley College for two years and has completed two 
professional achievements as defined in §B500.5 after that faculty 
member has been granted the rank of Associate Professor, may apply 
for the rank of Professor.  

 
B502.1.5 Criteria for Adjunct Faculty  

 
B502.1.5.1 Adjunct Instructor 

 
B502.1.5.1.1 Any adjunct faculty member hired as an adjunct shall be 

considered an Adjunct Faculty. 
 

B502.1.5.2 Adjunct Assistant Professor 
 

B502.1.5.2.1 Any adjunct faculty member at Antelope Valley College 
who holds a Bachelors Degree plus 4 years of service, or a 
Masters Degree plus 2 years of service, or a Doctorate plus one 
year of service and one professional achievement after that 
faculty member has been granted the rank of Adjunct Instructor, 
may apply for the rank of Adjunct Assistant Professor. 

 
B502.1.5.2.2 “Adjunct Assistant Professor” is the highest ranking an 

adjunct faculty member may obtain. 
 

B502.1.6 Professor Emeritus 
 

B502.1.6.1 Retired faculty members may apply for the rank of Professor 
Emeritus. 

 
B502.1.6.2 The application for academic ranking for Professor Emeritus must 

include evidence of both full-time employment of no less than ten years 
as a faculty member as well as the conferment of the rank of full 
Professor at Antelope Valley College. 

 
B502.1.6.3 Recognition of emeritus faculty shall include, upon request, the 

following privileges, benefits, and courtesies: 



5/28/15	  5:59	  PM	  

	   5	  

B502.1.6.3.1 •An official document certificate verifying emeritus status of 
faculty member endorsed by the Academic Senate President, 

B502.1.6.3.2 •An AVC ID that lists Professor Emeritus status, 
B502.1.6.3.3 •A business card which indicates status as an emeritus 

faculty member at Antelope Valley College, 
B502.1.6.3.4 •Courtesy campus parking with a faculty sticker, 
B502.1.6.3.5 •Access and use of AVC Library print collection 
B502.1.6.3.6 •An invitation to participate in AVC public ceremonies. 

 
 
B503.0 Appeals 
 

B503.1.1 A petition to appeal the Academic Ranking denial shall be 
submitted to the Executive Committee. 

 
B503.1.1.1 When received, the Executive Committee shall notify the Senate 

of the appeal as an information item. 
 

B503.1.1.2 The petition must identify the specific reasons for the appeal, as 
well as the relief sought. 

 
B503.1.2 The Executive Committee shall convene a hearing within two 

weeks of receiving the petition to examine the nature of the appeal and hear 
any evidence in support of the appeal. 

 
B503.1.2.1 The hearing shall be closed to all except the Executive 

Committee, the petitioner and those who have been called to proffer 
evidence. 

 
B503.1.2.2 Those giving evidence shall only be allowed at the hearing during 

their testimony. 
 

B503.1.3 Within two weeks of the hearing, the Executive Committee shall 
make a determination regarding the appeal, and announce their decision to 
the Senate at the next regular meeting after the decision. 

 
B503.1.3.1 Should the Executive Committee be unable to come to a 

determination, e.g. are deadlocked, then the appeal shall be denied. 
 

B503.1.4 The decision is final and there can be no further appeal regarding 
the decision. 

 
 



AP 3570 Tobacco Use on Campus 

Reference:  
Government Code Section 7596, 7597, 7597.1, 7598; Labor Code 6404.5; Title 5, Section 
5148 

Smoking, including the use of electronic cigarettes, is prohibited everywhere on the main campus, 
Palmdale Center, and Fox Field Site with the exception of the parking lots. 

Chewing tobacco shall be prohibited any place on campus.  

The sale of tobacco products or tobacco paraphernalia is prohibited on all property owned, leased, 
licensed, or otherwise controlled by Antelope Valley Community College District. 

Smoking (including the use of electronic cigarettes) and chewing of tobacco shall be prohibited when 
riding or driving a college-owned vehicle.  

Smoking, including the use of electronic cigarettes, is prohibited inside any indoor area of any 
campus building, except for covered parking lots. 

“Covered parking lot” means an area designated for the parking of vehicles that is enclosed or 
contains a roof or ceiling, but does not include lobbies, lounges, waiting areas, stairwells, restrooms, 
and aircraft hangars that are a structural part of the parking lot or a building to which it is attached. 

Signs stating “NO SMOKING ON CAMPUS EXCEPT IN PARKING LOTS” shall be posted at major 
campus entry points (e.g. parking lot entrances and walkway leading into campus at corner of 30th 
Street West and Avenue K). 

Disciplinary measures to be taken against violators are listed here: 

Enforcement of this policy will be the responsibility of Los Angeles County Sheriff’s 
Department personnel.  All violators, including students, staff, faculty, and visitors, will be 
given a warning upon the first offense and will be directed to the parking lots. . A Field 
Investigation card will be completed with the violator’s contact information and filed for 
future reference.  Students Student violators will be heard through the Student Court will be 
referred to the Vice President of Student Services’ office upon the second offense.  Upon the 
second offense for faculty and staff, refer to the appropriate collective bargaining agreement. 
Non-student, non-staff, non-faculty visitors will be directed to leave the campus and not 
return upon the second offense. 

Smoking and the use of electronic cigarettes will be permitted in the parking lots.  All employees and 
students are encouraged to reinforce the policy by asking violators to be courteous and use a 
parking lot. 

11/7/05 
Revised:  9/10/07 
Revised:  2/8/10 
Revised:  9/10/12 
Revised: 5/13/15 
 



 



AP 5520 
Procedures for Student Discipline Related to Standards of 
Conduct Procedures 
References: 

Education Code Section 66017, 66300, 66301, 72122, and 76030, et seq.; Penal Code Section 
626.4 
 

The purpose of this procedure is to provide a prompt and equitable means to address violations of 
the Sstandards of Sstudent Cconduct, which guarantees the student or students involved the due 
process rights guaranteed them by state and federal constitutional protection. This procedure will 
be used in a fair and equitable manner, and not for purposes of retaliation. It is not intended to 
substitute for criminal or civil proceedings that may be initiated by other agencies. 

These administrative procedures are specifically not intended to infringe in any way on the rights 
of students to engage in free expression as protected by the state and federal constitutions, and 
by Education Code Section 76120, and will not be used to punish expression that is protected. 

Definitions 

District – The Antelope Valley Community College District. 

Student – Any person currently enrolled as a student at any college or in any program offered by 
the District. 

Instructor – Any academic employee of the District in whose class a student subject to discipline 
is enrolled, or counselor who is providing or has provided services to the student, or other 
academic employee who has responsibility for the student’s educational program. 

Short-Term Suspension – Exclusion of the student by the vice president Superintendent/President 
of student services for good cause from one or more classes for a period of up to ten consecutive 
days of instruction. 

Long-Term Suspension – Exclusion of the student by the vice Superintendent/Presidentpresident 
of student services for good cause from one or more classes for the remainder of the school 
term, or from all classes and activities of the college for one or more terms. 

Written or verbal reprimand – An admonition to the student to cease and desist from conduct 
determined to violate the Standards of Student Conduct.  Written reprimands may become part of 
a student's permanent record at the college.  A record of the fact that a verbal reprimand has 
been given may become part of a student's record at the college for a period of up to one year. 

Withdrawal of Consent to Remain on Campus – Withdrawal of consent by the vice president of 
student services or designee for any person to remain on campus in accordance with California 
Penal Code Section 626.4 where there isthe vice president has reasonable cause to believe that 
such person has willfully disrupted the orderly operation of the campus. 

Day – Days during which the District is in session and regular classes are held, excluding 
Saturdays and Sundays. 

Short-term Suspensions, Long-term Suspensions, and Expulsions:  Before any disciplinary action 
to suspend or expel is taken against a student, the following procedures will apply: 

• Notice – The vice president of student services will provide the student with written notice 
of the conduct warranting the discipline.  The written notice will include the following: 

Formatted: Left:  1", Right:  1", Top:  1",
Bottom:  1"

Formatted: None, Indent: Left:  0.03", Space
Before:  0 pt, Line spacing:  Exactly 16.35 pt

Formatted: No underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold



o the specific section of the Standards of Student Conduct that the student is accused of 
violating. 

o a short statement of the facts supporting the accusation. 

o the right of the student to meet with the vice president or designee to discuss the 
accusation, or to respond in writing. 

o the nature of the discipline that is being considered. 

• Time limits – The notice must be provided to the student within 10 days of the date on 
which the conduct took place; in the case of continuous, repeated or ongoing conduct, the 
notice must be provided within 10 days of the date on which conduct occurred which led 
to the decision to take disciplinary action. 

• Meeting – If the student chooses to meet with the vice president or designee, the meeting 
must occur no sooner than  10 days after the notice is provided.  At the meeting, the 
student must again be told the facts leading to the accusation, and must be given an 
opportunity to respond verbally or in writing to the accusation.  

 

Notification of Allege d Code of Conduct Violation 
Upon receiving information that the Standards of Student Code of Conduct may have been 
violated, written notification to the student or students will be sent outlining the allegations, and 
instructing them to schedule an appointment with the vice president of student services. With the 
exception of a minor, who must be accompanied by a parent or guardian, the student shall not 
have an advisor or legal representation at this meeting, unless approved/permitted by the vice 
president of student services. 

The board Board of trustees Trustees provides the following sanctions for violation of the 
Standards of Student Code of Conduct. One or more of the sanctions listed below may be 
imposed for any single or 
 

Antelope Valley Community College District ......Administrative Procedures Chapter 5 (Student Services) 
Page 70-AP 

 
multiple violation(s). Any times specified in these procedures may be shortened or lengthened, if 
there is mutual concurrence by the parties. 

Section I:  List of Sanctions 

.1 Admonition 

An oral statement to the offender that the student has violated District rules. 

.2.1 Reprimand 

A reprimand is a warning stating that the continued conduct of the type described in the 
reprimand may result in a subsequent formal action against a student by the 
districtDistrict. 

a) Verbal: Verbal notification to the student by a college staff member in a position 
of authority that continuance of the conduct may be cause for further disciplinary 
action.  A record of the fact that a verbal reprimand has been given may become 
part of a student’s record at the college for a period of up to one year. 

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Left:  1", Right:  1", Top:  1",
Bottom:  1"



b) Written:   A written notification to a student by the vice president of student 
services to cease and desist from conduct determined to violate the 
Sstandards of Sstudent Cconduct.  Written reprimands may become part of a 
student’s permanent record at the college. 

The college is not required to provide an appeal process for students who receive a 
written or verbal reprimand. 

.3 Temporary Suspension by Instructor 

.2 Temporary Suspension by Instructor (Education Code Section 76032):   

 

a) An instructor may order a student removedsuspend for cause any student from 
his/her class for the day of suspension and the next class followingmeeting. 

b) The instructor shall immediately report the suspension (verbally and 
subsequently in writing) to the appropriate dean and to his/her deanthe 
president and  to the vice president of student services. A decision will then be 
made concerning further disciplinary action. 

c) A conference will be initiated The vice president of student services office will 
initiate a conference, through the division dean, between the student, the instructor 
and division dean regarding the removal.   

c)d) The student shall not be returned to the classroom from whichduring the period 
of the removal he/she was suspended during the suspension, without the 
concurrence of the instructor, the instructor’s dean and the vice president of 
student services.  

d)e) No instructor shall be allowed to suspend a student without first apprising the 
student of the reason for suspension and permitting such student to present 
his/her version of the incident causing suspension. 

e)f) If the student is a minor, the instructor shall ask the parent or guardian of the 
student to attend a parent conference regarding the suspension as soon as 
possible. A college administrator shall attend the conference, if the instructor or 
parent or guardian so requests. 

f)g) Nothing herein will prevent the vice president of student services from 
recommending further disciplinary procedures in accordance with these 
procedures based on the facts that led to the removal, or the student’s 
previous violations. 

 
Antelope Valley Community College District ......Administrative Procedures Chapter 5 (Student Services) Page 

71-AP 

 
.4 Disciplinary Probation 

Disciplinary probation is a formal action of the district District against a student for 
misconduct, and the action may result in the student being removed from all college 
organization offices and being denied the privilege of participating in all college or student 
sponsored activities, including public performances. Disciplinary probation may be 
imposed on a student for a period not to exceed one year. The college is not required to 
provide an appeal process for students who are placed on disciplinary probation. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.61", Right:  0.13", 
No bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 
0.61"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.11",  No bullets or
numbering



.5 Restitution 

Financial compensation for damage to or misappropriation of property.  Restitution may 
take the form of appropriate service to repair or otherwise compensate for damages. 

.6 Campus Community Service 

In-kind campus community service may be imposed for violations of the code of conduct. 

.7 Withdrawal of Consent to Remain on Campus 

The vice president of student services or designee may notify any person for whom there 
is a reasonable belief that the person has willfully disrupted the orderly operation of the 
campus that consent to remain on campus has been withdrawn. If the person is on 
campus at the time, he or she must promptly leave or be escorted off campus. If 
consent is withdrawn by the vice president of student services (or designee), a written 
report must be promptly placed in the student’s discipline file. 

The person from whom consent has been withdrawn may submit a written request for 
a meeting on the withdrawal within the period of the withdrawal.  The request shall be 
granted not later than seven 10 days from the date of receipt of the request. 

Any person as to whom consent to remain on campus has been withdrawn who 
knowingly reenters the campus during the period in which consent has been withdrawn, 
except to come for a meeting or hearing, is subject to arrest (Penal Code Section 
626.4).  

Immediate Interim Suspension (Education Code Section 66017):   

The Superintendent/President or designee president may order immediate suspension of 
a  student where  he/she concludes that immediate suspension is required 
to protect lives  or property and to ensure the maintenance of order.  In cases 
 where an interim suspension has been ordered, the time limits contained  in 
these procedures shall not apply, and all hearing rights, including the  right to a formal 
hearing where a long-term suspension or expulsion is  recommended, will be afforded to 
the  student within ten (10) days. 

 

 

.8 Short-term Suspension 

a) Within 10 days after the meeting described above, the 
Superintendent/Presidentpresident shall, pursuant to a recommendation from 
the 10 days, decide whether to impose a short-term suspension, whether to 
impose some lesser disciplinary action, or whether to end the matter.   

b) Written notice of the Superintendent/Presidentpresident’s decision shall be 
provided to the student.  The notice will include the length of time of the 
suspension, or the nature of the lesser disciplinary action.   

c) The Superintendent/Presidentpresident’s decision on a short-term suspension 
shall be final. 

a)d) Suspension may include from any or all classes of the college and from use of any 
Ddistrict facilities. The college president or the vice 
Superintendent/Presidentpresident of student services may suspend a student 
for good cause as follows: 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.61", First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.56"



• From one or more classes for a period of up to 10 days of instruction. 

• From one or more classes for the remainder of the school term. 

• From all classes of the college for one or more terms. 

[During this period of suspension, a student shall not be permitted to 
enroll in classes at the college.  (CA Ed. Code Section 76031)] 

• From the use of Ddistrict facilities and all available services. 

b) In all cases of suspension, the student shall receive official notice from the vice 
president of student services.  or designee by “Certified Mail – Return 

 

 Antelope Valley Community College District ......Administrative Procedures Chap ter 5 
(Student Services) Page 72-AP 

 
Receipt Requested,” or by hand-delivery with a signed receipt.  If delivery is refused, 
the written notification will be considered as being received, and the suspension will 
go forward. 

c)          Long-term Suspension 

 Within 10 days after the meeting described above, the Superintendent/ 
Presidentpresident shall, pursuant to a recommendation from the vice president, 
decide whether to impose a long-term suspension.  Written notice of the 
Superintendent/Presidentpresident’s decision shall be provided to the student.  
The notice will include the right of the student to request a formal hearing before 
a long-term suspension is imposed, and a copy of this policy describing the 
procedures for a hearing. The suspension of any student from the college for a 
period of more than 10 days shall be accompanied by a prompt hearing. If an 
immediate suspension is required in order to protect lives or property and/or to 
ensure the maintenance of order, a reasonable opportunity shall be afforded the 
suspended student for a hearing within ten days of the suspension.  (CA Ed. Code 
Section 66017). 

.9 Expulsion 

a) The expulsion of a student must be accompanied by a hearing before the 
college hearing panel.  (See Appeals Involving Maximum Suspensions.) 

b)a) Within 10 days after the meeting described above, the Superintendent/President 
president shall, pursuant to a recommendation from the vice president, decide 
whether to recommend expulsion to the Board of Trustees.  Written notice of the 
Superintendent/Presidentpresident’s decision shall be provided to the student.  
The notice will include the right of the student to request a formal hearing before 
expulsion is imposed, and a copy of this policy describing the procedures for a 
hearing. Within 5 days after receipt of the Superintendent/Presidentpresident’s 
decision regarding a long-term suspension or expulsion, the student may request 
a formal hearing.  The request must be made in writing to the vice president.In 
cases of expulsion, the president shall recommend action to the board of trustees 
after receiving the vice president of student services’ recommendation(s) and 
supporting documentation, including college hearing panel recommendations. 

c)b) After board board action, the Superintendent/Presidentpresident shall notify the 
student by “Certified Mail – Return Receipt Requested,” or by hand-delivery with 
a signed receipt.  If delivery is refused, the written notification will be considered 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.61", Hanging: 
0.5", Right:  0.3", Space Before:  5.85 pt, Line
spacing:  single, Outline numbered + Level: 2 +
Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.61" + Indent
at:  1.11", Tab stops:  1.11", Left

Formatted: Condensed by  0.1 pt

Formatted: Expanded by  0.05 pt

Formatted: Condensed by  0.05 pt

Formatted: Expanded by  0.05 pt

Formatted: Condensed by  0.05 pt

Formatted: Condensed by  0.15 pt

Formatted: Condensed by  0.05 pt

Formatted: Condensed by  0.05 pt

Formatted: Condensed by  0.1 pt

Formatted: Condensed by  0.05 pt

Formatted: Condensed by  0.1 pt

Formatted: Condensed by  0.1 pt

Formatted: Expanded by  2.55 pt

Formatted: Condensed by  0.05 pt

Formatted: Condensed by  0.05 pt

Formatted: Expanded by  0.05 pt

Formatted: Condensed by  0.05 pt

Formatted: Condensed by  0.05 pt



as being received, and the board board action will go forward. The expulsion 
may be imposed for a specified or unspecified time, and shall include all 
programs, services, and activities of the college. 

d)c) For expulsions imposed for an unspecified time, the student may, after a 
reasonable time (not less than one year), request in writing that the college 
Superintendent/Presidentpresident removes the expulsion.  If approved by the 
college Superintendent/Presidentpresident, he/she shall make that 
recommendation to the board Bboard of Ttrustees.  The 
Superintendent/Presidentpresident shall notify the student of the board’s 
board’s decision. 

Section II:  Appeals Involving Maximum Suspensions 

.1 College Hearing Panel Procedures  

Schedule of Hearing  

The formal hearing shall be held within 10 days after a formal request for hearing is 
received. 

The college hearing panel for any disciplinary action shall be composed of one 
administrator, one faculty member, and one student.  A quorum of three members must 
be present for the hearing to take place. 

The vice Superintendent/Presidentpresident of student services, the president of the 
academic senate and the ASO president shall each, at the beginning of the academic 
year, establish a list of at least five persons who will serve on student disciplinary hearing 
panels. The vice Superintendent/Presidentpresident of student services shall appoint 
the college hearing panel members from the names on these lists. However, no 
administrator, faculty member, or student who has any personal involvement in the 
matter to be decided, who is a necessary witness, or who could not otherwise act in a 
neutral manner shall serve on a hearing panel. All members of the hearing panel will be 
asked to sign a written statement attesting to their neutrality. 

.2 College Hearing Panel Chair 

The vice Superintendent/Presidentpresident of student services shall appoint one 
member of the panel to serve as the chair.  The decision of the college hearing panel 
chair shall be final on 

 
Antelope Valley Community College District ......Administrative Procedures Chapter 5 (Student Services) Page 

73-AP 

 
all matters relating to the conduct of the hearing, unless there is a vote by both other 
members of the panel to the contrary. 

.3 Conduct of the Hearing 

a) Students will be notified, in writing, of the date, time, and place of the hearing. 
They must advise the vice president of student services or designee,              in 
writing, if they will be present. The hearing will occur whether they attend or not. 

b) The members of the hearing panel shall be provided with a copy of the 
allegation(s) against the student and any written response provided by the 
student before the hearing begins. 



c) The facts supporting the allegation(s) shall be presented by a college 
representative who shall be the vice president of student services or 
designee. 

d) The college representative and the student may call witnesses and introduce oral 
and written testimony relevant to the issues of the matter.  The student shall not 
have any other representation, except as provided in item (g). 

e) Formal rules of evidence shall not apply. Any relevant evidence shall be 
admitted. 

f) Unless the hearing panel determines to proceed otherwise, the college 
representative and the student shall each be permitted to make an opening 
statement.  Thereafter, the college representative shall make their first 
presentation, followed by the student.  The college representative may present 
rebuttal evidence after the student completes his or her evidence. The burden 
shall be on the college representative to prove, by preponderance substantiation 
of evidence, that the facts alleged are true. 

g) The student may represent himself/herself, and may also have the right to be 
represented by a person of his/her choice.  The student shall not be represented 
by an attorney unless, in the judgment of the hearing panel, complex legal issues 
are involved.  If the student wishes to be represented by an attorney, a request 
must be presented not less than five days prior to the date of the hearing.  If the 
student is permitted to be represented by an attorney, the college representative 
may request legal assistance. The college hearing panel may also request legal 
assistance; any legal advisor provided to the panel may sit with it in an advisory 
capacity to provide legal counsel, but shall not be a member of the panel, nor 
vote with it. 

h) Hearings shall be closed and confidential unless the student requests that it be 
open to the public.  Any such request must be made no less than 5 days prior to the 
date of the hearing. 

i) In a closed hearing, W witnesses shall not be present at the hearing when not 
testifying, unless all parties and the panel agree to the contrary. 

j) The hearing shall be recorded by the college, either by tape electronic recording or 
stenographic recording, and shall be the only recording made. No witness who 
refuses to be recorded may be permitted to give statements.  In the event the 
recording is by tape electronic recording, the college hearing panel chair shall, at 
the beginning of the hearing, ask each person present to identify themselves by 
name, and thereafter shall ask witnesses to identify themselves by name.  Tape 
Electronic recording shall remain in the custody of the district, either at the 
college or the Ddistrict office, at all times, unless released 

 
Antelope Valley Community College District ......Administrative Procedures Chapter 5 (Student Services) Page 

74-AP 

 
to a professional transcribing service. The student may request a copy (in writing) 
of the tape recording. 

k) All testimony shall be taken under oath; the oath shall be administered by the 
college hearing panel chair. Written statements of witnesses under penalty of 



perjury shall not be used, unless the witness is unavailable to testify. A witness 
who refuses to be tape-recorded is not available. 

l) Within five days following the close of the hearing, the hearing panel shall 
prepare and send to the Superintendent/Presidentpresident a written decision.  
The decision shall include specific factual findings regarding the allegation(s), 
and shall include detailed conclusions regarding whether any specific section of 
the standards Standards of student Student conduct Conduct were violated.  
The decision shall also include a specific disciplinary action to be imposed, if any.  
The decision shall be based only on the record of the hearing, and not on 
matters outside of that record. The record consists of the original allegation(s), 
the written response, if any, of the student, and the oral and written evidence 
produced at the hearing. 

.4 Superintendent/PresidentPresident’s Decision 

a) Long-Term Suspension 

Within five days following receipt of the college hearing panel’s recommended 
decision, the Superintendent/Presidentpresident shall render a final written 
decision. The Superintendent/Presidentpresident may accept, modify, or reject 
the findings, decisions, and recommendations of the college hearing panel. If 
the Superintendent/Presidentpresident modifies or rejects the college hearing 
panel’s decision, the Superintendent/Presidentpresident shall review the record 
of the findings and conclusions, and shall prepare a new written decision, which 
contains specific factual findings and conclusions. The decision of the 
Superintendent/Presidentpresident shall be final. 

b) Expulsion 

Within five days following receipt of the college hearing committee’s 
recommended decision, the Superintendent/Presidentpresident shall render a 
written recommended decision to the board Board of trusteesTrustees.  The 
Superintendent/Presidentpresident may accept, modify, or reject the findings, 
decisions, and recommendations of the college hearing panel.  If the 
Superintendent/President president modifies or rejects the college hearing 
panel’s decision, the Superintendent/Presidentpresident shall review the record 
of the hearing, and shall prepare a new written decision, which contains specific 
factual findings and conclusions. 
The Superintendent/Presidentpresident’s decision shall be forwarded to the board 
Board of trustees Trustees in cases in which the expulsion is upheld. 

.5 Board of Trustees Decision 

a) The Board of Trustees shall consider any recommendation from the 
Superintendent/Presidentpresident for expulsion at the next regularly scheduled 
meeting of the board after receipt of the recommended decision. 

b) The board shall consider an expulsion recommendation in closed session, 
unless the student has requested that the matter be considered in a public 
meeting.   Any such request must be made, in writing, no less than five day 
prior to the date of meeting.  (Education Code Section 72122). 

 
Antelope Valley Community College District ......Administrative Procedures Chapter 5 (Student Services) Page 

75-AP 



c) The student shall be notified in writing, by registered or certified mail or by 
personal service, at least three days prior to the meeting, of the date, time, and 
place of the board’s meeting.  If delivery is refused, the recommendation will be 
submitted to the board, regardless of whether the student is present. 

d) The student may, within 48 hours after receipt of the notice, request that the 
hearing be held as a public hearing.  Even if a student has requested that the 
board consider an expulsion recommendation in a public meeting, the board will 
hold any discussion that might be in conflict with the right of privacy of any 
student, other than the student requesting the public meeting, in closed 
session. 

e) The board may accept, modify, or reject the findings, decisions, and 
recommendations of the Superintendent/Presidentpresident.  If the board 
modifies or rejects the decisions, the board shall review the record of the 
hearing, and shall prepare a new written decision, which contains specific 
factual findings and conclusions. The decision of the board shall be final. 

f) The final action of the board on the expulsion shall be taken at a public 
meeting, and the result of the action shall be a public record of the Ddistrict. 
(CA Ed. Code Section 72122). 

Immediate Interim Suspension (Education Code Section 66017):   

 The president may order immediate suspension of a  student where  he/she 
concludes that immediate suspension is required to protect lives  or property and to 
ensure the maintenance of order.  In cases  where an interim suspension has been ordered, 
the time limits contained  in these procedures shall not apply, and all hearing rights, 
including the  right to a formal hearing where a long-term suspension or expulsion is 
 recommended, will be afforded to the  student within ten (10) days. 

  

Withdrawal of Consent to Remain on Campus:   

 The vice president may notify any person for whom there is a reasonable 
 belief that the person has willfully disrupted the orderly operation of the 
 campus that consent to remain on campus has been withdrawn.  If the 
 person is on campus at the time, he/she must promptly leave or be  escorted 
off campus.  If consent is withdrawn by the vice president a  written report must be promptly 
made to the president. 

 The person from whom consent has been withdrawn may submit a written 
 request for a hearing on the withdrawal within the period of the withdrawal.  
 The request shall be granted not later than seven days from the date of 
 receipt of the request.  The hearing will be conducted in accordance with 
 the provisions of this procedure relating to interim suspensions. 

 In no case shall consent be withdrawn for longer than no more than 14 
 days from the date upon which consent was initially withdrawn. 

 Any person as to whom consent to remain on campus has been withdrawn 
 who knowingly reenters the campus during the period in which consent has 
 been withdrawn, except to come for a meeting or hearing, is subject to 
 arrest (Penal Code Section 626.4). 

 Time Limits:   

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.56",  No
bullets or numbering, Tab stops:  0.56", Left + 
0.63", Left

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.56"

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Not Italic

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering, Tab
stops:  0.56", Left + Not at  1.07"



 Any times specified in these procedures may be shortened or lengthened if there is 
 mutual concurrence by all parties. 

f)  
2/6/06 
Revised:  9/10/07 
Revised: 5/14/15 
 

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering



AP 5530   Student Rights and Grievances 

Reference: 

Title IX, Education Amendments of 1972; Education Code Section 76224(a); ACCJC Accreditation 
Eligibility Requirement 20; ACCJC Accreditation Standard IV.D 

Purpose: 

The purpose of this procedure is to provide a prompt and equitable means of resolving student 
grievances. These procedures shall be available to any student who reasonably believes a college 
decision or action has adversely affected his or her status, rights or privileges as a student. The 
procedures shall include, but not be limited to, grievances regarding: 

• Sex discrimination as prohibited by Title IX of the Higher Education Amendments of 1972 

• Sexual harassment 

• Financial aid  

• Illegal discrimination 

• Course grades ,  to the extent permitted by Education Code Section 76224(a), which provides: 
"When grades are given for any course of instruction taught in a community college District, the 
grade given to each student shall be the grade determined by the instructor of the course and the 
determination of the student's grade by the instructor, in the absence of mistake, fraud, bad faith, 
or incompetency, shall be final." “Mistake” may include, but is not limited to errors made by an 
instructor in calculating a student’s grade and clerical errors.  Prior to filing a grievance, students 
should refer to AP 4231 for the process to request a change of grade. 

• The exercise of rights of free expression protected by state and federal constitutions and Education 
Code Section 76120. 

This procedure does not apply to: 

• Sexual harassment, which is covered under separate Board Policies and Administrative Procedures 
(AP 3435). 

• Illegal discrimination, which is covered under separate Board Policies and Administrative 
Procedures (AP 3435). 

• Student disciplinary actions, which are covered under separate Board Ppolicies and Administrative 
Procedures (AP 5520). 

• Police citations (i.e. "tickets"); - complaints about citations issued by the Campus Sheriff's 
Department for violations such as parking and registration, may be appealed through the Campus 

Formatted: Left:  1", Right:  1", Top:  1",
Bottom:  1"

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: Bullet + Aligned at:  0.08" +
Indent at:  0.33"



Sheriff's Department, however, citations issued by off-campus LASD personnel must be appealed 
through the County Courthouse.  

• must be directed to the County Courthouse in the same way as any traffic violation. 

Definitions: 

Party. The student or any persons claimed to have been responsible for the student's alleged grievance, 
together with their representatives. "Party" shall not include the Grievance Hearing Committee or the 
college gGrievance Committee Chairofficer. 

Superintendent/President. The Superintendent/President or a designated representative of the 
Superintendent/President. 

Student. A currently enrolled student, a person who has filed an application for admission to the college, 
or a former student. A grievance by an applicant shall be limited to a complaint regarding denial of 
admission. Former students shall be limited to grievances relating to course grades to the extent 
permitted by Education Code Section 76224(a). 

Respondent. Any person claimed by a grievant to be responsible for the alleged grievance. 

 

Day. Unless otherwise provided, day shall mean a day during which the college is in session and 
regular classes are held, excluding Saturdays and Sundays. 

Informal Resolution: 

Each student who has a grievance shall make a reasonable effort to resolve the matter on an informal 
basis prior to requesting a grievance hearing, and shall attempt to solve the   problem with the person 
with whom the student has the grievance, that person's immediate supervisor, or the local college 
administration. 

The Superintendent/President shall appoint an employee who shall assist students in seeking 
resolution by informal means. This person shall be called the Grievance Officer. The Grievance Officer 
and the student may also seek the assistance of the Associated Student Organization in attempting to 
resolve a grievance informally. 

Informal meetings and discussion between persons directly involved in a grievance are essential at 
the outset of a dispute and should be encouraged at all stages. An equitable solution should be 
sought before persons directly involved in the case have stated official or public positions that might 
tend to polarize the dispute and render a solution more difficult. At no time shall any of the persons 
directly or indirectly involved in the case use the fact of such informal discussion, the fact that a 
grievance has been filed, or the character of the informal discussion for the purpose of strengthening 
the case for or against persons directly involved in the dispute or for any purpose other than the 
settlement of the grievance. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.08",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.08"



Any student who believes he or she has a grievance shall file a Statement of Grievance Form detailing 
(time(s), place(s), and nature of grievance which must be filed with the Grievance Officer within 10 
days of the incident on which the grievance is based, or 10 days after the student learns of the basis 
for the grievance, whichever is later. The Statement of Grievance, whether or not the student has 
already initiated efforts at informal resolution, must be filed within the timelines, if the student 
wishes the grievance to become official. Within 10 days following receipt of the Statement of 
Grievance Form, the Grievance Officer shall advise the student of his or her rights and responsibilities 
under these procedures, and assist the student, if necessary, in the final preparation of the Statement 
of Grievance form. 

If at the end of 10 days following the student's first meeting with the Grievance Officer, there is no 
informal resolution of the complaint which is satisfactory to the student, the student shall have the 
right to request a grievance hearing. 

Grievance Hearing Committee: 

The Superintendent/President or designee shall at the beginning of each semesteracademic year, 
including any summer session, establish a standing panel of 18 members of the college community, 
including 6 students, 6 faculty members and 6 administrators, from which one or more Grievance 
Hearing Committees may be appointed. The panel will be established with the advice and assistance 
of the Associated Students Organization and the Academic Senate, who shall each submit 6 names to 
the Superintendent/President or designee for inclusion on the panel. 

A Grievance Hearing Committee shall be constituted in accordance with the following: 

• It shall include one student, one instructor (three if grievance is regarding a grade), and one 
college administrator selected from the panel described above. 

• A quorum of three members must be present for the hearing to take place and at least onetwo 
must be a faculty member in grade grievances. 

 

Antelope Valley Community College District ......Administrative Procedures Chapter 5 (Student 
Services) Page 78-AP 

 

• No person shall serve as a member of a Grievance Hearing Committee if that person has been 
personally involved in any matter giving rise to the grievance, has made any statement on the 
matters at issue, or could otherwise not act in a neutral manner. 

• All members of the gGrievance Hearing Ccommittee will be asked to sign a written statement 
attesting to their neutrality. 

Formatted: Underline



Any party to the grievance may challenge for cause any member of the hearing committee prior to 
the beginning of the hearing by addressing a challenge to the Vice President 
Superintedent/Ppresident or designee of Student Services who shall determine whether cause for 
disqualification has been shown. If the Vice PSuperintendent/Ppresident or designee of Student 
Services feels that sufficient grounds for removal of a member of the committee has been presented, 
the he/sheSuperintendent/Ppresident or designee shall remove the challenged member or members 
and substitute a member or members from the panel described above. This determination is subject 
to appeal as defined below.   The grievance officer shall sit with the Grievance Hearing Committee 
but shall not serve as a member nor vote 

The grievance officer shall sit with the Grievance Hearing Committee but shall not serve as a member 
nor vote. The grievance officer shall coordinate all scheduling of hearings, shall serve to assist all 
parties and the Grievance Hearing Committee to facilitate a full, fair and efficient resolution of the 
grievance, and shall avoid an adversary role. 

 

The Grievance Committee Chair shall coordinate all scheduling of hearings, and facilitate a full, fair 
and efficient resolution of the grievance. 

Request for Grievance Hearing: 

Any request for a grievance hearing shall be filed within 10 days after filing the Statement of 
Grievance as described above. 

Within 30 days following receipt of the Request for Grievance Hearing, the President 
Superintendent/Ppresident or designee or designated representative shall appoint a Grievance 
Hearing Committee as described above, and the Grievance Hearing Committee shall meet in private 
and without the parties present  to select a chair and to determine on the basis of the Statement of 
Grievance whether it presents sufficient grounds for a hearing. 

The determination of whether the Statement of Grievance presents sufficient grounds for a hearing 
shall be based on the following: 

• The statement contains facts which, if true, would constitute a grievance under these 
procedures; 

• The grievant is a student as defined in these procedures, which include applicants and former 
students; 

• The grievant is personally and directly affected by the alleged grievance; 

• The grievance was filed in a timely manner; 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline



• The grievance is not clearly frivolous, clearly without foundation, or clearly filed for purposes of 
harassment. 

If the grievance does not meet each of the requirements, the Grievance Hearing Committee chair 
shall notify the student in writing of the rejection of the Request for a Grievance Hearing, together 
with the specific reasons for the rejection and the procedures for appeal. This notice will be provided 
within 10 days of the date the decision is made by the Grievance Hearing Committee. 

If the Request for Grievance Hearing satisfies each of the requirements, the Grievance grievance 
Committee Chairofficer shall schedule a grievance hearing. The hearing will begin within 30 days 
following the decision to grant a Grievance Hearing. All parties to the grievance shall be given not less 
than 10 days notice of the date, time and place of the hearing. 

 

Antelope Valley Community College District ......Administrative Procedures Chapter 5 (Student 
Services) Page 79-AP 

 

Hearing Procedure: 

The decision of the Grievance Hearing Committee chair shall be final on all matters relating  to the 
conduct of the hearing, unless there is a vote of a majority of the other members of the panel to the 
contrary. 

The members of the Grievance Hearing Committee shall be provided with a copy of the grievance and 
any written response provided by the respondent before the hearing begins. 

Each party to the grievance may call witnesses and introduce oral and written testimony relevant to 
the issues of the matter. 

Formal rules of evidence shall not apply. Any relevant evidence shall be admitted. 

Unless the Grievance Hearing Committee determines to proceed otherwise, each party to the 
grievance shall be permitted to make an opening statement. Thereafter, the grievant(s) or grievants 
shall make the first presentation, followed by the respondent or respondents. The grievant(s) may 
present rebuttal evidence after the respondent(s)' evidence. The burden  shall be on the grievant(s) 
or grievants to prove by substantial evidence that the facts alleged are true and that a grievance has 
been established as specified above. 

Each party to the grievance may represent himself or herself and may also have the right to be 
represented by a person of his or her choice. A party shall not be represented by an attorney unless, 
in the judgment of the Grievance Hearing Committee, complex legal issues are involved. If a party 
wishes to be represented by an attorney, a request must be presented not less than 10 days prior to 
the date of the hearing. If one party is permitted to be represented by an attorney, any other party 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline



shall have the right to be represented by an attorney. The hearing committee may also request legal 
assistance through the PSuperintendent/Ppresident ; any legal advisor provided to the hearing 
committee may sit with it in an advisory capacity to provide legal counsel but shall not be a member 
of the panel nor vote with it. 

Hearings shall be closed and confidential unless all parties request that it be open to the public. Any 
such request must be made no less than 10 days prior to the date of the hearing. 

In a closed hearing, witnesses shall not be present at the hearing when not testifying, unless all 
parties and the committee agree to the contrary. 

The hearing shall be recorded by the gGrievance oOfficer either by tape electronic recording or 
stenographic recording, and shall be the only recording made. No witness who refuses to be recorded 
may be permitted to give testimony. In the event the recording is by tape electronic recording, the 
Grievance Hearing Committee cChair shall, at the beginning of the hearing, ask each person present 
to identify themselves by name, and thereafter shall ask witnesses to identify themselves by name. 
The tape electronic recording shall remain in the custody of the District, either at the college or the 
District office, at all times, unless released to a professional transcribing service. Any party may 
request a copy of the tape electronic recording. 

All testimony shall be taken under oath; the oath shall be administered by the Grievance Hearing 
Committee cChair. Written statements of witnesses under penalty of perjury shall not be used unless 
the witness is unavailable to testify. A witness who refuses to be tape recorded shall be considered to 
be unavailable. 

Within 10 days following the close of the hearing, the Grievance Hearing Committee shall prepare 
and send to the President Superintendent/Ppresident a written decision. The decision shall include 
specific factual findings regarding the grievance, and shall include specific conclusions regarding 
whether a grievance has been established as defined above. The decision shall also include a specific 
recommendation regarding the relief to be afforded the grievant, if any. The decision shall be based 
only on the record of the hearing, and not on matter outside of that record. The record consists of the 
original grievance, any written response, and the oral and written evidence produced at the hearing. 
 
 
Antelope Valley Community College District ......Administrative Procedures Chapter 5 (Student 
Services) Page 80-AP 
Antelope Valley Community College District ......Administrative Procedures Chapter 5 (Student Services) 
Page 81-AP 
a specific recommendation regarding the relief to be afforded the grievant, if any. The 
decision shall be based only on the record of the hearing, and not on matter outside of that record. The 
record consists of the original grievance, any written response, and the oral and written evidence 
produced at the hearing. 
Superintendent/President’s Decision: 

Within 10 days following receipt of the Grievance Hearing Committee's decision and 
recommendation(s), the Superintendent/ PpPresident shall send to all parties his or her written 

Formatted: Space After:  0 pt, Line spacing: 
single



decision, together with the Hearing  Committee's decision and recommendations. The 
Superintendent/PpPresident may accept or reject the findings, decisions and recommendations of the 
Hearing Committee. 

The factual findings of the Hearing Committee shall be accorded great weight; and if the 
Superintendent/PpPresident does not accept the decision or a finding or recommendation of the 
Grievance Hearing Committee, the Superintendent/PPpresident shall review the record of the hearing, 
and shall prepare a new written decision which contains specific factual findings and conclusions. The 
decision of the Superintendent/PPresident shall be final, subject only to appeal as provided below. 

Appeal: 

Any appeal relating to a Grievance Hearing Committee decision that the Statement of Grievance does 
not present a grievance as defined in these procedures shall be made in writing to the 
Superintendent/PPpresident within 30 days of that decision. The Superintendent/PPpresident shall 
review the Statement of Grievance and Request for Grievance Hearing in accordance with the 
requirements for a grievance provided in these procedures, but shall not consider any other matters. 
The Superintendent/PpPresident’s decision whether or not to grant a grievance hearing shall be final 
and not subject to further appeal. 

Time Limits: 
 
Any times specified in these procedures may be shortened or lengthened if there is mutual 
concurrence by all parties. 
 
  

 

  
 
 

Formatted: Space After:  0 pt, Line spacing: 
single

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Space After:  0 pt, Line spacing: 
single



 

Office of the President 

 

June 3, 2015 

To the Academic Senate: 

I am writing to provide an explanation and a rationale for the language changes made to BP 4020 and BP 
4025 that have been pulled from the Board of Trustees agenda at the request of the Senate President. 
First, the process of BP 2410 was followed by the administration and the College Coordinating Council; 
the vetting process allowed approximately 90 days where only 30 days is required. The two BPs could 
move forward to the Board without violation of policy, but out of professional courtesy and respect for 
the Senate, they are pulled.  I have given my word; they will not go back to the Board until the October 
Board meeting. 

The changes in the two Board Policies, as is the case with many others, are the result of incorporating 
many changes from over the years.  There has not been an active and consistent review process here at 
the college in some time.  We are beginning such a process so some of the BP changes that will show up 
will be changes that other colleges made some time ago.  That is the case with the two BPs in question.  
The latest changes were to conform language to the requirements of the new accreditation standards. 
There were previous changes that included the change from Academic Senate to 
Superintendent/President.  Attached there are examples from four institutions reflecting their language 
changes regarding BP 4020. 

As a matter of background, it may be helpful to understand the legal relationships involved. Antelope 
Valley Community College District is the legal entity established by the Board of Governors by its 
authority codified in Title 5 and Education Code.  Antelope Valley College is the accredited institution 
that the District administers.  The title of Superintendent/President reflects the legal responsibility for 
compliance with statute as Superintendent of the District, and the college administration title of 
President.  In multi-college districts, the Chancellor holds the legal responsibility, and the college 
Presidents hold the accredited institution administration responsibility. 

The District is the entity that is overseen by the Board of Trustees and is the legal entity that allows for 
contracting; liability for compliance with statute; and receives the apportionment of tax revenue for the 
funding of the district.  The establishment of the community college system and its funding allocation 
was set forth in AB 1725. 

 

 



Regarding the two BPs in question at this time, 4020 and 4025, the change to Superintendent/President 
references the legal liability and requirement for compliance with statute.  Title 5 has very specific 
statutory references to the minimum requirements for an associate’s degree; minimum requirements 
for general education components; minimum requirements for grading, and particularly grade changes; 
minimum requirements for course approvals prior to being offered; and, the matching of classroom 
hours with units of credit awarded, to provide just a few examples.  As delegated by the Board, the 
Superintendent/President carries the legal liability for that compliance, the Academic Senate does not. 

Later in the writing in 4020 and 4025, there is an additional statutory requirement of the 
Superintendent/President to comply with the provisions of AB 1725, at the same time ensuring the 
statutory requirement of compliance.  This requirement is to adhere to the provisions of “rely primarily 
on the recommendation” of the Academic Senate, or to reach “mutual agreement”.  For Antelope Valley 
College these provisions are clearly set forth in BP 2510.  In the writing in BP 4020 and BP 4025, specific 
reference is made to adhering to the provisions of BP 2510, while carrying out the compliance 
responsibility.  

Therefore, with the construction of the two BPs, the legal responsibility and liability for compliance with 
statute is set forth, while ensuring that the provisions protecting the role of the Academic Senate in 
academic and professional matters are maintained. 

There has been no breaking of the law as accused, rather it has been further protected and defined as to 
the roles of responsibility.  The Academic Senate has no legal liability in compliance; the 
Superintendent/President as delegated by the Board of Trustees, and the Board of Trustees itself, do. 

I hope this helps to clarify the issue. Further, that it demonstrates that there has been no skirting of the 
law as alleged, outside my presence, when I was clearly available. Nor was there any notice to my office 
of the concern to seek clarification before the allegations were made. 

My professional regards, 

 

Ed Knudson                                                                                                                                                                
President 

/attachments 



Peralta Community College District  

BP 4020 BOARD POLICY 4020 PROGRAM, CURRICULUM, AND COURSE DEVELOPMENT The programs and 
curricula of the District shall be of high quality, relevant to the multicultural East Bay community and 
student needs, reflective of the District's and Colleges' Mission, Vision and Values, and evaluated 
regularly through Program Review and Annual Unit Plan updates to ensure quality and currency. To that 
end, the Chancellor shall establish procedures for the development and review of all curricular offerings, 
including their establishment, modification, or discontinuance.  

Furthermore, these procedures shall include: • appropriate involvement of the faculty and Academic 
Senate in all processes; • regular review and justification of programs and course descriptions; • 
opportunities for training for persons involved in aspects of curriculum development; and • 
Consideration of job market and other related information for vocational and occupational programs, as 
well as regular review of vocational programs consistent with requirements of Education Code.  

All new programs, program modifications, and program deletions shall be approved by the Board. All 
new programs shall be submitted to the California Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office for approval 
as required. Individual degree-applicable credit courses offered as part of a permitted educational 
program shall be approved by the Board.  

Non-degree-applicable credit and degree-applicable courses that are not part of an existing approved 
program must satisfy the conditions authorized by Title 5 regulations and shall be approved by the 
Board. Consistent with federal regulations applicable to federal financial aid eligibility, the District shall 
assess and designate each of its programs as either a “credit hour” program or a “clock hour” program.  

The Chancellor shall establish a procedure which prescribes the definition of “credit hour” consistent 
with applicable federal regulations, as they apply to community college districts.  

The Chancellor shall establish a procedure to assure that curriculum at the District complies with the 
definition of “credit hour” or “clock hour,” where applicable.  

The Chancellor shall establish a procedure for using a clock-to-credit hour conversion formula to 
determine whether a credit hour program is eligible for federal financial aid. The conversion formula is 
used to determine whether such a credit-hour program has an appropriate minimum number of clock 
hours of instruction for each credit hour it claims. References: Education Code Sections 70901(b), 
70902(b), and 78016; California Code of Administrative Regulations Sections 51000, 51022, 55100, 
55130 and 55150 U.S. Department of Education regulations on the Integrity of Federal Student Financial 
Aid Programs under Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended ACCJC Accreditation 
Standards II.A and II.A.9 Administrative Procedure 4020 Program and Curriculum Development 
Replaces: Board Policy 5.11, Review Policy for Instructional Programs approved November 14, 2000. 
Approved by the Board: February 14, 2012 Reviewed and approved by the Board of Trustees: April 14, 
2015 

 



 
Book 
VCCCD Board Policy Manual 
  
Section 
Chapter 4 Academic Affairs 
  
Title 
BP 4020 PROGRAM AND CURRICULUM DEVELOPMENT 
  
Number 
BP 4020 
  
Status 
Active 
  
Legal 
California Education Code, Section 66700 
California Education Code, Section 70901, 70902(b) 
California Education Code, Section 78016 
Title 5, Section 51022 
Title 5, Section 55001 
Title 5, Section 55100 
Title 5, Section 55130 
Title 5, Section 55150 
U.S. Department of Education Regulations on the Integrity of Federal Student Financial Aid Programs Under 
Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended 
  
Adopted 
February 16, 2006 
  
Last Reviewed 
September 9, 2014 
  
 
 
 
The programs and courses of the District shall be of high quality, relevant to community and student 
needs, and evaluated regularly to ensure quality and currency. To that end, the Chancellor, in 
consultation with the Academic Senates, shall establish procedures for the development and review 
of all curricular offerings, including their establishment, modification or discontinuance. 
  
Furthermore, these procedures shall include: 

• Appropriate involvement of the faculty and Academic Senate in all processes; 
• Regular review and justification of programs and course descriptions; 
• Opportunities for training for persons involved in aspects of curriculum development; and 
• Consideration of job market and other related information for vocational and occupational 

programs. 

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/displaycode?section=edc&group=66001-67000&file=66700
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/displaycode?section=edc&group=70001-71000&file=70900-70902
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/displaycode?section=edc&group=78001-79000&file=78015-78016.5
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I69DDBCC0B6CB11DFB199EEE3FF08959C?contextData=%28sc.Search%29&rank=1&originationContext=Search+Result&navigationPath=Search%2fv3%2fsearch%2fresults%2fnavigation%2fi0ad60056000001487bbec69271e85b3a%3fstartIndex%3d1%26Nav%3dREGULATION_PUBLICVIEW%26contextData%3d%28sc.Default%29&list=REGULATION_PUBLICVIEW&transitionType=SearchItem&listSource=Search&viewType=FullText&t_T2=51022&t_S1=CA+ADC+s
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I83AC7CE0B6CB11DFB199EEE3FF08959C?contextData=%28sc.Search%29&rank=1&originationContext=Search+Result&navigationPath=Search%2fv3%2fsearch%2fresults%2fnavigation%2fi0ad60056000001487bbdb64f71e85b10%3fstartIndex%3d1%26Nav%3dREGULATION_PUBLICVIEW%26contextData%3d%28sc.Default%29&list=REGULATION_PUBLICVIEW&transitionType=SearchItem&listSource=Search&viewType=FullText&t_T2=55001&t_S1=CA+ADC+s
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I897E3410B6CB11DFB199EEE3FF08959C?contextData=%28sc.Search%29&rank=1&originationContext=Search+Result&navigationPath=Search%2fv3%2fsearch%2fresults%2fnavigation%2fi0ad60056000001487bbf867971e85b4a%3fstartIndex%3d1%26Nav%3dREGULATION_PUBLICVIEW%26contextData%3d%28sc.Default%29&list=REGULATION_PUBLICVIEW&transitionType=SearchItem&listSource=Search&viewType=FullText&t_T2=55100&t_S1=CA+ADC+s
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I89DBE470B6CB11DFB199EEE3FF08959C?contextData=%28sc.Search%29&rank=1&originationContext=Search+Result&navigationPath=Search%2fv3%2fsearch%2fresults%2fnavigation%2fi0ad60056000001487bc0001e71e85b5a%3fstartIndex%3d1%26Nav%3dREGULATION_PUBLICVIEW%26contextData%3d%28sc.Default%29&list=REGULATION_PUBLICVIEW&transitionType=SearchItem&listSource=Search&viewType=FullText&t_T2=55130&t_S1=CA+ADC+s
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I46A88770325E11E194EACEFFB46E37D1?contextData=%28sc.Search%29&rank=1&originationContext=Search+Result&navigationPath=Search%2fv3%2fsearch%2fresults%2fnavigation%2fi0ad60056000001487bc0a9b171e85b6a%3fstartIndex%3d1%26Nav%3dREGULATION_PUBLICVIEW%26contextData%3d%28sc.Default%29&list=REGULATION_PUBLICVIEW&transitionType=SearchItem&listSource=Search&viewType=FullText&t_T2=55150&t_S1=CA+ADC+s
http://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ope/policy.html
http://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ope/policy.html


  
All new courses and programs, courses and programs with substantial revisions, and program 
deletions shall be approved by the Board. 
  
All new courses and programs with substantial revisions,shall be submitted to the California 
Community Colleges Chancellor's Office (CCCCO) for approval as required. 
  
Board approved Proficiency Awards, which are non-transcripted, do not require submission to and 
approval by the CCCCO. 

 

 

 

 

Cabrillo College 

Chapter Four: Academic Affairs BP 4020 Program, Curriculum, and Course Development Page 1 of 2 BP 
4020 Program, Curriculum, and Course Development  

The programs and curricula of the District shall be of high quality, relevant to community and student 
needs, and evaluated regularly to ensure quality and currency. The Board of Trustees recognizes that the 
college curriculum will be dynamic in response to changes in teaching methodology, legal requirements, 
student needs, technology, and occupational opportunities. For this reason, the faculty and 
administration have the responsibility to engage in continuing review of college offerings for the 
purpose of revising, deleting or adding courses and programs as needed within the resources available. 
To that end, the Superintendent/President shall, through consultation with the Faculty Senate, establish 
procedures for the development and review of all curricular offerings, including their establishment, 
modification or discontinuance, which include consultation with the Faculty Senate.  

Furthermore, these procedures shall include: • appropriate involvement of the faculty and Faculty 
Senate and Curriculum Committee in all processes; • regular review and justification of programs and 
course descriptions; • opportunities for training for persons involved in aspects of curriculum 
development; • consideration of job market and other related information for career and technical 
programs.  

All new programs and program changes shall be approved by the Board, and submitted to the Office of 
the Chancellor for the California Community Colleges for approval, certified by the Vice President of 
Instruction, as required. 

Individual degree-applicable credit courses offered as part of a permitted educational program shall be 
approved by the Board. Non-degree-applicable credit and degree-applicable courses that are not part of 
an existing approved program must satisfy the conditions authorized by Title 5 regulations and shall be 
approved by the Board. 



 Credit Hour  

Consistent with federal regulations applicable to federal financial aid eligibility, the District shall assess 
and designate each of its programs as either a “credit hour” program or a “clock hour” program.  

The Superintendent/President will establish procedures which prescribe the definition of “credit hour” 
consistent with applicable federal regulations, as they apply to community college districts. Chapter 
Four: Academic Affairs BP 4020 Program, Curriculum, and Course Development Page 2 of 2 The 
Superintendent/President shall establish procedures to assure that curriculum at the District complies 
with the definition of “credit hour” or “clock hour,” where applicable. The Superintendent/President 
shall also establish procedure for using a clock-to-credit hour conversion formula to determine whether 
a credit hour program is eligible for federal financial aid. The conversion formula is used to determine 
whether such a credit-hour program has an appropriate minimum number of clock hours of instruction 
for each credit hour it claims.  

Legal References: Education Code Section 70901(b), 70902(b) and 78016; Title 5 Sections 51000, 51022, 
55100, 55130, and 55150; US Department of Education regulations on the integrity of Federal Student 
Financial Aid Programs under Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended; 34 Code of 
Federal Regulations Sections 600.2, 602.24, 603.24, and 668.8 Adopted: April 4, 1988 Revised: 
November 1, 2010 Revised: October 6, 2014 

 

 

Mt. SAC 

Chapter 4 – Academic Affairs BP 4020 Program, Curriculum, and Course Development References: 
Education Code Section 70902(b), and 78016; Title 5, Section 51022 and 55130, BP 3255  

The programs and curricula of Mt. San Antonio College shall be of high quality, relevant to community 
and student needs, and evaluated regularly to ensure quality, currency, and transferability when 
appropriate. To that end, the College President/CEO in consultation with the Chief Instructional Officer 
and the Academic Senate shall establish procedures for the development and review of all curricular 
offerings, including their establishment, modification or discontinuance.  

Furthermore, these procedures shall include: • appropriate involvement of the Academic Senate; • 
regular review and justification of programs and course descriptions; and • opportunities for training for 
persons involved in aspects of curriculum development. • consideration of job market and other related 
information for career and technical programs.  

All new programs and program deletions shall be approved by the Board. New courses that are not part 
of an existing approved program and all new programs shall be submitted to the Office of the Chancellor 
for the California Community Colleges for approval as required. Adopted May 26, 2004 Revised January 
26, 2005 Revised January 24, 2007 


	6-4-15 Senate Agenda-FINAL
	6-4-15 Senate FINAL Minutes
	6-4-15 Senate Equivalencies
	6-4-15 Senate - Ranking Requests as of 5-26-15
	6-4-15 Senate Exec VP-IGat
	6-4-15 Senate BYLAWS-ArticleV
	6-4-15 Senate AP 3570 Tobacco Use on Campus Updated 5-15
	AP 3570 Tobacco Use on Campus
	11/7/05

	6-4-15 Senate AP 5520 Student Discipline Update 5-15
	AP 5520
	UNotification of Allege d Code of Conduct Violation
	2/6/06



	6-4-15 Senate AP 5530   Student Rights and Grievances  Updated 5-27
	6-4-15 Senate - EKnudson Ltr to Senate - BP4020
	6-4-15 Senate - EKnudson BP 4020-Other Campus Policies

